

ORDINANCE NO. 6816

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, WASHINGTON, AMENDING SECTION 8.08.180 OF THE AUBURN CITY CODE RELATING TO SOLID WASTE COLLECTION CHARGES

WHEREAS, the City provides for refuse and garbage services for residential and commercial properties located within the City; and

WHEREAS, it is the City’s policy to have its waste management operations and services reflect their true costs in terms of value and fees charged; and

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed its solid waste fund balance and utility rates and has determined that there is a need to stabilize the fund balance; and

WHEREAS, publishing the utility rates in the Auburn City Code as a list does not clearly show the rate changes over time while using a table format allows citizens to more easily determine the rates that are effective each year.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN as follows:

Section 1. Amendment to City Code. Section 8.08.180 of the Auburn City Code is amended to read as follows:

8.08.180 Collection charges – Residential and commercial collections – Effective on October 1, 2021.

A. Services and charges herein shall become effective for each account on ~~January 1, 2014~~October 1, 2021, January 1, 2022, and January 1, 2023 as established below. ~~Upon this date,~~ sServices shall be provided at the 35-gallon cart service rate unless the finance department is notified otherwise by the tenant or property owner. Likewise, unless the finance department is otherwise notified, services will automatically revert to the 35-gallon cart service rate upon a change in property tenancy or ownership. Rates to be charged by the city for solid waste services shall be those shown in the following tables for the dates and services listed~~as follows:~~

<u>Type of Service</u>	<u>Monthly Charge</u>
<u>Residential Garbage and Recycling</u>	

One 10-gallon micro-can, one pickup per week	\$6.25
One 20-gallon mini-can, one pickup per week	\$12.69
One 35-gallon cart, one pickup per week	\$16.11
One 64-gallon cart, one pickup per week	\$35.60
One 96-gallon cart, one pickup per week	\$49.62
Each extra container of up to 32 gallons, per pickup	\$10.83

~~Residential Compostables~~ Monthly Charge

One 35-gallon compostables cart, one pickup per week	\$8.81
One 64-gallon compostables cart, one pickup per week	\$9.53
One 96-gallon compostables cart, one pickup per week	\$10.26
One extra can/bag, per pickup	\$3.32
One extra cart, per pickup	\$5.29
Compostables restart (if cancel and restart service within seven months)	\$25.00
Compostables cart cleaning/deodorizing	\$15.00

~~Commercial Garbage and Recycling~~ Monthly Charge

One 10-gallon micro-can, one pickup per week	\$11.26
One 20-gallon mini-cart, one pickup per week	\$12.99
One 35-gallon cart, one pickup per week	\$18.18
One 64-gallon cart, one pickup per week	\$29.32
One 96-gallon cart, one pickup per week	\$40.47
Each extra container of up to 32 gallons, per pickup	\$10.83
One yard container, one pickup per week	\$126.81
One yard container, two pickups per week	\$238.32
One yard container, three pickups per week	\$349.84
One yard container, four pickups per week	\$461.39
One yard container, five pickups per week	\$572.92
One and one-half yard container, one pickup per week	\$168.02
One and one-half yard container, two pickups per week	\$299.43
One and one-half yard container, three pickups per week	\$439.44

One and one-half yard container, four pickups per week	\$579.40
One and one-half yard container, five pickups per week	\$719.38
Two yard container, one pickup per week	\$192.11
Two yard container, two pickups per week	\$360.52
Two yard container, three pickups per week	\$528.97
Two yard container, four pickups per week	\$697.40
Two yard container, five pickups per week	\$865.86
Three yard container, one pickup per week	\$267.28
Three yard container, two pickups per week	\$506.00
Three yard container, three pickups per week	\$744.71
Three yard container, four pickups per week	\$983.43
Three yard container, five pickups per week	\$1,222.11
Four yard container, one pickup per week	\$334.66
Four yard container, two pickups per week	\$635.84
Four yard container, three pickups per week	\$937.02
Four yard container, four pickups per week	\$1,238.21
Four yard container, five pickups per week	\$1,539.38
Six yard container, one pickup per week	\$474.31
Six yard container, two pickups per week	\$904.91
Six yard container, three pickups per week	\$1,335.45
Six yard container, four pickups per week	\$1,766.03
Six yard container, five pickups per week	\$2,196.60
Eight yard container, one pickup per week	\$596.93
Eight yard container, two pickups per week	\$1,144.61
Eight yard container, three pickups per week	\$1,692.31
Eight yard container, four pickups per week	\$2,240.00
Eight yard container, five pickups per week	\$2,787.71
Each extra yard (by volume), per pickup	\$31.70
One-yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$256.76
One-yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$513.53
One and one-half yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$357.41

One and one half yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$714.81
Two yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$436.64
Two yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$873.27
Three yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$628.86
Three yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$1,257.74
Four yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$811.33
Four yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$1,622.66
Five yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$1,182.45
Five yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$2,364.90
Six yard compactor, one pickup per week	\$1,408.20
Six yard compactor, two pickups per week	\$2,816.42
One yard special pickup	\$103.23
One and one half yard special pickup	\$106.79
Two yard special pickup	\$110.33
Three yard special pickup	\$117.40
Four yard special pickup	\$124.47
Six yard special pickup	\$138.66
Eight yard special pickup	\$152.80
One yard compactor special pickup	\$123.61
One and one half yard compactor special pickup	\$137.76
Two yard compactor special pickup	\$151.92
Three yard compactor special pickup	\$177.19
Four yard compactor special pickup	\$228.59
Five yard compactor special pickup	\$332.79
Six yard compactor special pickup	\$396.77

Commercial Compostables	Monthly Charge
--------------------------------	-----------------------

One 35 gallon compostables cart, one pickup per week	\$11.92
One 64 gallon compostables cart, one pickup per week	\$12.66
One 96 gallon compostables cart, one pickup per week	\$13.43
One yard container, one pickup per week	\$95.29

Two-yard container, one pickup per week	\$125.26
Each extra yard (by volume), per pickup	\$37.23
One-yard special pickup	\$34.31
Two-yard special pickup	\$57.42
Compostables restart (if cancel and restart service within seven months)	\$25.00
Compostables cart cleaning/deodorizing	\$15.00

	Monthly Charge		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Residential Garbage and Recycling			
35-gallon garbage cart - one pickup per month	\$10.00	\$11.65	\$13.18
Senior discount	\$5.00	\$5.82	\$6.59
20-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$14.61	\$17.02	\$19.25
Senior discount	\$7.31	\$8.51	\$9.63
35-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$19.75	\$23.00	\$26.02
Senior discount	\$9.88	\$11.50	\$13.01
45-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$27.00	\$31.45	\$35.58
Senior discount	\$13.50	\$15.72	\$17.79
64-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$38.00	\$44.26	\$50.07
Senior discount	\$19.00	\$22.13	\$25.03
96-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$57.14	\$66.56	\$75.29
Senior discount	\$28.57	\$33.28	\$37.64
Each extra container of up to 32 gallons, per pickup	\$10.83	\$10.83	\$10.83

	Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Miscellaneous - Other			
Appliances (non-refrigerant)	\$25.00	\$29.12	\$32.94
Refrigerators / freezers	\$35.00	\$40.77	\$46.12
Sofas	\$25.00	\$29.12	\$32.94
Mattresses	\$25.00	\$29.12	\$32.94
Roll-out charge (per 25 ft/cart/time) or overweight/oversize cart	\$5.00	\$5.82	\$6.59
Cart cleaning (per cart per cleaning)	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00
Cart redelivery	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00
Return trip (each)	\$15.00	\$17.47	\$19.76
Drive-in charge (per month)	\$7.00	\$8.15	\$9.22
Additional 96-gallon recycling cart, each pickup	\$3.00	\$3.49	\$3.95

	Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Yard Waste Service			
96-gallon yard waste cart, one pickup per week	\$11.81	\$13.76	\$15.57
Senior discount	\$5.91	\$6.88	\$7.78
64-gallon yard waste cart, one pickup per week	\$10.97	\$12.78	\$14.46
Senior discount	\$5.49	\$6.39	\$7.23
35-gallon yard waste cart, one pickup per week	\$10.15	\$11.82	\$13.37
Senior discount	\$5.08	\$5.92	\$6.69
Extra can/bag, each pickup	\$3.82	\$4.45	\$5.04
Second and additional 96-gallon cart	\$7.00	\$8.15	\$9.22

Commercial Garbage and Recycling	Monthly Charge		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
20-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$14.52	\$16.38	\$18.53
35-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$20.33	\$22.92	\$25.93
45-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$24.48	\$27.61	\$31.23
Extra garbage (32-gallon equivalent)	\$10.83	\$10.83	\$10.83
64-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$32.78	\$36.97	\$41.82
96-gallon garbage cart, one pickup per week	\$45.25	\$51.03	\$57.72
1 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$141.77	\$159.90	\$180.88
1 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$266.44	\$300.50	\$339.93
1 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$391.12	\$441.12	\$499.00
1 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$515.83	\$581.78	\$658.11
1 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$640.52	\$722.41	\$817.19
1.5 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$187.85	\$211.86	\$239.66
1.5 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$334.76	\$377.56	\$427.09
1.5 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$491.29	\$554.10	\$626.80
1.5 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$647.77	\$730.58	\$826.43
1.5 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$804.27	\$907.08	\$1,026.09
2 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$214.78	\$242.24	\$274.02
2 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$403.06	\$454.59	\$514.23
2 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$591.39	\$666.99	\$754.50
2 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$779.69	\$879.37	\$994.74
2 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$968.03	\$1,091.78	\$1,235.03
3 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$298.82	\$337.02	\$381.24
3 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$565.71	\$638.03	\$721.74
3 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$832.59	\$939.02	\$1,062.22
3 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$1,099.47	\$1,240.03	\$1,402.72
3 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$1,366.32	\$1,540.99	\$1,743.17

Commercial Garbage and Recycling (continued)	Monthly Charge		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
4 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$374.15	\$421.98	\$477.35
4 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$710.87	\$801.75	\$906.94
4 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$1,047.59	\$1,181.51	\$1,336.53
4 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$1,384.32	\$1,561.29	\$1,766.13
4 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$1,721.03	\$1,941.04	\$2,195.71
6 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$530.28	\$598.07	\$676.54
6 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$1,011.69	\$1,141.02	\$1,290.73
6 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$1,493.03	\$1,683.90	\$1,904.83
6 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$1,974.42	\$2,226.83	\$2,518.99
6 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$2,455.80	\$2,769.75	\$3,133.14
8 yard container, 1 pickup/week	\$667.37	\$752.68	\$851.44
8 yard container, 2 pickups/week	\$1,279.67	\$1,443.27	\$1,632.62
8 yard container, 3 pickups/week	\$1,892.00	\$2,133.88	\$2,413.84
8 yard container, 4 pickups/week	\$2,504.32	\$2,824.47	\$3,195.04
8 yard container, 5 pickups/week	\$3,116.66	\$3,515.09	\$3,976.27
Extra commercial yards - in container	\$20.00	\$22.56	\$25.52
Extra commercial yards - loose on ground	\$25.00	\$28.20	\$31.90
1 yard compactor, per pickup	\$66.24	\$74.71	\$84.52
1.5 yard compactor, per pickup	\$92.21	\$104.00	\$117.64
2 yard compactor, per pickup	\$112.65	\$127.05	\$143.72
3 Yard compactor, per pickup	\$162.25	\$182.99	\$207.00
4 yard compactor, per pickup	\$209.32	\$236.08	\$267.06
5 yard compactor, per pickup	\$305.07	\$344.07	\$389.21
6 yard compactor, per pickup	\$363.32	\$409.76	\$463.52

	Monthly Charge		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Special Pickups			
1 yard container	\$115.41	\$130.17	\$147.24
1.5 yard container	\$119.39	\$134.65	\$152.32
2 yard container	\$123.35	\$139.12	\$157.37
3 yard container	\$131.25	\$148.03	\$167.45
4 yard container	\$139.16	\$156.95	\$177.54
6 yard container	\$155.02	\$174.84	\$197.78
8 yard container	\$170.83	\$192.67	\$217.95

	Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Commercial Yard Waste			
96-gallon yard waste cart, one pickup per week	\$15.01	\$16.93	\$19.16
64-gallon yard waste cart, one pickup per week	\$14.15	\$15.96	\$18.06
35-gallon yard waste cart, one pickup per week	\$13.33	\$15.03	\$17.00
1 yard container, one pickup per week	\$60.00	\$67.67	\$76.55
2 yard container, one pickup per week	\$120.00	\$135.34	\$153.10
1 yard special pickup	\$38.36	\$43.26	\$48.94
2 yard special pickup	\$64.20	\$72.40	\$81.90
Redelivery/restart fee	\$15.00	\$16.92	\$19.14
Cart cleaning/deodorizing	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00
Extra yards	\$41.62	\$46.94	\$53.10

	Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Miscellaneous Services			
Cart return trip	\$15.00	\$16.92	\$19.14
Stand-by time (per minute)	\$2.50	\$2.82	\$3.19
Cart roll-out charge (per 25 ft/cart/time)	\$1.81	\$2.04	\$2.31
Cart redelivery	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00
Container redelivery	\$23.30	\$26.28	\$29.73
Container cleaning (per yard per cleaning)	\$15.00	\$16.92	\$19.14
Container return trip	\$21.91	\$24.71	\$27.95

	Rate per Pickup		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Temporary Container Service			
2 yard container	\$85.28	\$96.18	\$108.80
4 yard container	\$126.17	\$142.30	\$160.96
6 yard container	\$167.07	\$188.43	\$213.16
8 yard container	\$207.87	\$234.45	\$265.21
Delivery fee	\$114.04	\$128.62	\$145.49
Daily rent - 2 yard container	\$1.76	\$1.98	\$2.24
Daily rent - 4 yard container	\$1.97	\$2.22	\$2.51
Daily rent - 6 yard container	\$2.18	\$2.46	\$2.78
Daily rent - 8 yard container	\$2.39	\$2.70	\$3.05

Roll Off	Rate per Pickup		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
10 yard drop box	\$183.91	\$210.09	\$258.84
20 yard drop box	\$183.91	\$210.09	\$258.84
30 yard drop box	\$183.91	\$210.09	\$258.84
40 yard drop box	\$183.91	\$210.09	\$258.84
8 - 25 yard compactor	\$223.12	\$254.90	\$314.03
30 yard compactor	\$223.12	\$254.90	\$314.03
40 yard compactor	\$223.12	\$254.90	\$314.03

Permanent Drop Box Rental Fees	Monthly Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
10 yard drop box	\$60.21	\$68.79	\$84.74
20 yard drop box	\$85.81	\$98.03	\$120.78
30 yard drop box	\$110.33	\$126.04	\$155.28
40 yard drop box	\$134.87	\$154.08	\$189.82
Delivery	\$114.04	\$130.27	\$160.50

Temporary Drop Box Haul Fees	Rate per Pickup		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
10 yard drop box	\$220.68	\$252.11	\$310.60
20 yard drop box	\$220.68	\$252.11	\$310.60
30 yard drop box	\$220.68	\$252.11	\$310.60
40 yard drop box	\$220.68	\$252.11	\$310.60

Temporary Drop-box Rental (per day) and Delivery Fees	Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
10 yard drop box	\$2.87	\$3.28	\$4.05
20 yard drop box	\$4.26	\$4.87	\$6.00
30 yard drop box	\$5.52	\$6.31	\$7.77
40 yard drop box	\$6.14	\$7.01	\$8.63
Delivery	\$114.04	\$130.27	\$160.50

Miscellaneous Services	Rate		
	Effective	Effective	Effective
	October 1, 2021	January 1, 2022	January 1, 2023
Mileage Charge per mile to other facility	\$3.90	\$4.46	\$5.49
Return Trip	\$35.00	\$39.98	\$49.26
Solid Drop-box Lid Charge (per day)	\$1.50	\$1.71	\$2.11
Container Cleaning (per yard)	\$3.44	\$3.93	\$4.84
Event Services (per 3 carts)	\$30.00	\$34.27	\$42.22
Stand-By Time (per minute) - Boeing rate	\$2.50	\$2.86	\$3.52
Stand-By Time (per minute) - regular rate	\$2.50	\$2.86	\$3.52
Truck & Driver (per hour)	\$182.31	\$208.27	\$256.59
Additional Labor (per person per hour)	\$106.13	\$121.25	\$149.38

B. Multi-unit residential accounts must have the same type of service for each "occupied unit" unless tenant and owner sign city tenant release form for single-family residence garbage

service. Tenant then pays direct to the city for solid waste services and is provided variable solid waste service as defined in "single-family residence." Owners are responsible for payment if tenant does not pay. If no payment is received from tenant or owner within 60 days of billing, service will revert back to multi-unit residential accounts. Residences can request a tenant release form only once in a year while they are at that address.

C. Property owners of property not specifically addressed elsewhere in this Chapter are responsible for tenant payments. A tenant and owner may sign a city tenant release form for garbage service. Tenant then pays direct to city for solid waste services. Owners are responsible for payment if the tenant does not pay. If no payment is received from tenant or owner within 60 days of billing, service will revert back to a 35-gallon cart and tenant's name will be removed from the account and the owner will be held responsible.

D. Garbage collections in excess of those included in the current monthly service (as listed on the account) shall be at the rate of \$10.83 per each extra container of up to 32 gallons per pickup.

E. ~~For temporary and roll off services, services and charges herein shall become effective on January 1, 2014~~ ~~October 1, 2021, and~~ do not include tipping fees charged by the King County solid waste division which shall be added to the total service charges. The tipping fee shall be the actual container load weight multiplied by the tipping fee and then multiplied by a factor of 1.4702. Minimum charges for temporary and roll off services include applicable delivery and pickup fees and rental rates per pickup. ~~Temporary and roll off service rates (not including tipping fees) shall be as follows:~~

Temporary Container Service	Rate Per Pickup
Two yard container	\$76.28
Four yard container	\$112.85
Six yard container	\$149.44
Delivery fee	\$44.40
Daily rent	\$1.57
Roll Off	Rate Per Pickup
Twenty yard drop box	\$161.27
Thirty yard drop box	\$161.27
Forty yard drop box	\$161.27
Eight through 25 yard compactor	\$195.66
Thirty yard compactor	\$195.66
Forty yard compactor	\$195.66
Permanent Drop Box Rental Fees	Rent Per Month
Twenty yard drop box	\$75.25

Thirty yard drop box	\$96.75
Forty yard drop box	\$118.27

~~**Temporary Drop Box Haul Fees** **Rate Per Pickup**~~

Twenty yard drop box	\$193.52
Thirty yard drop box	\$193.52
Forty yard drop box	\$193.52

~~**Temporary Drop Box Rental Fees** **Rent Per Day**~~

Twenty yard drop box	\$3.74
Thirty yard drop box	\$4.84
Forty yard drop box	\$5.38

F. Rental rates for dumpsters and drop boxes are required with the provision that persons, firms or corporations may furnish their own detachable bulk containers on approval of the solid waste administrator. These containers shall be constructed so that they can be readily picked up by the service provider and the service provider's equipment.

G. A ~~deposit-pre-pay amount~~ for all temporary containers ~~20 cubic yards or larger~~ is required prior to delivery. ~~For new or previously delinquent accounts the deposit shall include up to a maximum of two months of collection, rent and tonnage fees.~~ Current accounts with no delinquency charges shall be charged a ~~deposit-pre-pay amount~~ as follows:

	<u>DepositPre-Pay</u>
<u>Two cubic yard container</u>	<u>\$200.00</u>
<u>Four cubic yard container</u>	<u>\$250.00</u>
<u>Six cubic yard container</u>	<u>\$300.00</u>
<u>Eight cubic yard container</u>	<u>\$350.00</u>
Twenty cubic yard container	\$600.00
Thirty cubic yard container	\$700.00
Forty cubic yard container	\$800.00

As other temporary containers become available, a ~~deposit-pre-pay amount~~ shall be required for the use of such container and the ~~deposit-pre-pay~~ amount shall be based on size. The amount of the ~~deposit-pre-pay sum~~ shall be determined by the director of finance.

~~H. For miscellaneous services, services and charges herein shall become effective on January 1, 2014, and shall be as follows:~~

Miscellaneous — Other	Rate
Appliances	\$84.57
Refrigerator/freezers	\$121.35
Sofas	\$84.57
Chairs	\$56.95
Mattresses	\$41.40
Tires: auto/light truck	\$28.28
 — bus/heavy truck	\$30.78
 — additional for rims or wheels	\$20.00
Miscellaneous refuse, per cubic yard	\$128.46
Carry-out surcharge	\$8.24
Carry-out per can	\$1.62
Roll-out container	\$20.84
Pressure washing, per yard	\$3.44
Mileage charge over 15 miles	\$3.42
Return trip — Roll-off	\$59.65
Return trip — SF and commercial	\$19.03
Solid drop box lid charge, per month	\$23.86
Stand-by time, per minute	\$4.78
Truck and driver, per hour	\$159.87
Additional labor, per person	\$93.07

(Ord. 6395 § 3, 2011; Ord. 6367 § 10, 2011; Ord. 6354 § 3, 2011; Ord. 6160 § 1, 2008; Ord. 6139 § 1, 2007; Ord. 6069 § 1, 2006; Ord. 6054 § 1, 2006; Ord. 5968 § 1, 2006; Ord. 5885 § 2, 2004; Ord. 5726 § 1, 2003; Ord. 5719 § 2, 2002; Ord. 5622 § 1, 2001; Ord. 5243 § 1, 1999; Ord. 5212 § 1 (Exh. D), 1999; Ord. 5151 § 1, 1998; Ord. 5081 § 1, 1998; Ord. 4943 § 1, 1997; Ord. 4613 § 2, 1993; Ord. 4588 § 1, 1992; Ord. 4537 § 1 (Exh. A), 1991; Ord. 4500 § 2, 1991. Formerly 8.08.230.)

Section 3. Implementation. The Mayor is hereby authorized to implement such administrative procedures as may be necessary to carry out the directions of this legislation.

Section 4. Severability. The provisions of this ordinance are declared to be separate and severable. The invalidity of any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or portion of this ordinance, or the invalidity of the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance, or the validity of its application to other persons or circumstances.

Section 5. Effective date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force five days from and after its passage, approval and publication as provided by law.

Section 6. Codification Note. Section 8.08.180 of the Auburn City Code shall be retitled to read as follows: “**8.08.180 Collection charges – Residential and commercial collections – Effective before October 1, 2021.**” Both this retitled section and the amendatory section adopted herein shall be published in the Auburn City Code. After October 1, 2021, the amendatory section adopted herein shall replace the current section 8.08.180.

INTRODUCED: _____

PASSED: _____

APPROVED: _____

NANCY BACKUS, MAYOR

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Shawn Campbell, MMC, City Clerk

Kendra Comeau, City Attorney

Published: _____